

BEFORE THE
OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Santa Fe, New Mexico
June 1, 1960

EXAMINER HEARING

IN THE MATTER OF:)

Application of Shell Oil Company for an order)
authorizing two salt water disposal wells.)
Applicant, in the above-styled cause, seeks)
an order authorizing the disposal of produced)
salt water through its State ETA Well No. 1,)
located in the NE/4 NE/4 of Section 8, Town-)
ship 16 South, Range 35 East, Lea County, New)
Mexico, with the injection to be in the Wolf-)
camp formation in the interval from 10,365)
feet to 10,463 feet. Applicant further seeks)
an order authorizing the disposal of produced)
salt water through its State EDA Well No. 2,)
located in the SW/4 SW/4 of Section 7, Town-)
ship 16 South, Range 35 East, Lea County, New)
Mexico, with injection to be in the Wolfcamp)
formation in the interval from 10,712 feet to)
10,734 feet.)

Case 1978

BEFORE: Elvis A. Utz, Examiner

TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING

MR. UTZ: Case 1978.

MR. PAYNE: Application of Shell Oil Company for an
order authorizing two salt water disposal wells.

MR. MONTGOMERY: I am A. K. Montgomery, appearing for
Shell. We'll have two witnesses.

MR. UTZ: Any other appearances in this case?

MR. MONTGOMERY: George Olson and Mr. W. M. Ashley

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



are the witnesses.

(Witnesses sworn.)

GEORGE OLSON

called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MONTGOMERY:

Q Will you state your name, please?

A George Olson.

Q What is your official position in connection with the Shell, applicant in this case?

A I am mechanical engineer with the Shell Oil Company in Roswell.

Q Have you testified as an expert before this Commission and this Examiner?

A Yes, I have.

MR. MONTGOMERY: Are the qualifications as an expert of this witness acceptable?

MR. UTZ: Yes, they are.

Q Turning now to ETA State No. 1, there are two wells involved in this application, are there not, Mr. Olson?

A That's right.

(Whereupon Shell's Exhibits 1 through 5 were marked for identification.)

Q Turning now to your Exhibit No. 1, will you tell the

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



Examiner was that prepared under your direction and supervision?

A Yes, it is.

Q Go ahead.

A Exhibit No. 1 is a plat showing the State ETA Lease in the Townsend Field and Well No. 1 which is marked in red as the well which we propose to use as a salt water disposal well for water produced on our State ETA Lease.

Q Your State Lease is the one hatched in Exhibit No. 1?

A Yes, it's the 640 acre tract marked in the center of the plat.

Q Now, have you contacted the offset operators of this ETA Well No. 1?

A Yes, sir, we have.

Q Have you obtained any waivers or consents from them?

A Yes, sir, we have. We have received waivers from Utex Exploration, Wilshire Oil Company and the Humble Oil and Refining Company.

Q Are those marked Exhibits Nos. 3, 4 and 5 respectively?

A That's correct.

Q Now, continue referring to this Exhibit No. 1. Will you explain to the Examiner what you propose to do and what you seek in this application?

A We propose to dispose of all salt water produced on the ETA Lease into ETA Well No. 1, and, referring to Exhibit No. 2,

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



we show the casing detail that is now existing in the ETA No. 1, showing that we have 347 feet of 13-3/8 inch casing set and cemented to the surface and we also have 4653 feet of 8-5/8 casing set and cemented also to the surface. We have a string of 5-1/2 inch casing set at 10,488 feet and cemented with 600 sacks of cement with an estimated top of the cement at approximately 8,000 feet. We propose to inject water from our tank battery on the ETA Lease.

Q Where is your tank battery?

A It's just slightly to the Northeast of the center of the section. We propose to run the water directly from our wash tank through the existing flow line that was used by this well until it was temporarily abandoned and inject it into this well by gravity. We propose to inject it directly into the casing and inject the water into the existing Wolfcamp zones as shown on Exhibit No. 2.

Q Have you made an analysis of this water as to the salt content?

A I do not have any figures with me exactly the salt content in this water, but since we are proposing to inject the water directly into the casing, we have had the water inspected by chemical treating companies and we will put inhibitor in the water to minimize the possibility of any corrosion on the casing and we would install coupons on the system to check the effectiveness



of our inhibitor and keep the inhibitor level to the point where corrosion will be negligible.

The life of this lease is quite short, relatively speaking, and we do not anticipate any problem with corrosion during the short remaining life of the lease. We will not, we do not, rather, expect to use any pumps to put the system under pressure.

Q How much salt water are you presently producing from your operating wells in the lease?

A We are presently producing approximately 300 to 330 barrels a day.

Q Is that the quantity you propose to dispose of through this well?

A Yes. In the future the water production may increase to something in the order of 600 barrels a day which is, we believe is less than the, considerably less than the capacity of this well on a gravity flow.

Q How are you disposing of your salt water on the lease at the present time?

A At the present time it's being disposed of in open pit.

Q A single pit or several pits at the wells?

A No, single pit by the tank battery.

Q How many of these wells are producing salt water?

A Four of the wells on the lease are now producing salt water, wells 5, 6, 7 and 8 are producing salt water.

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



Q Those are the wells you are referring to as marked on Exhibit 1?

A That's correct.

Q Do you feel that this method of disposing of this water will safely and adequately prevent any commingling of the salt water with the fresh water in the area?

A Yes, we do. With the casing that we have in the well now, we don't feel there'll be any problem of contaminating fresh water with the salt water.

Q Is this within any known or established underground water basin, so far as you know?

A Well, I am not sure. I don't believe it's in the area which has been established by the Commission as a critical area. I believe there is fresh water in the area; however, in the shallow zones.

Q Do you know the approximate depth of those shallow zones of fresh water?

A No, sir, I do not. Our other witness can probably give you better answers.

Q Do you have any further explanation or testimony that you care to offer to the Examiner at this time in connection with the State ETA No. 1 Well?

A No, I do not.

MR. MONTGOMERY: Shall we proceed to the next well,



Mr. Examiner?

MR. UTZ: Yes, sir, go ahead.

MR. MONTGOMERY: I didn't know whether you wanted to cross examine on each well or separate.

Q Will you now turn to your EDA application No. 2?

(Whereupon Shell's EDA Exhibits Nos. 1 through 5 were marked for identification.)

Q Were the Exhibits 1 and 2 in this EDA No. 2 prepared under your direction and supervision?

A Yes, sir, they were.

Q In the same or similar manner as the exhibits in the former well about which you have just testified?

A Yes, sir. The Exhibits No. 1 are similar. The Exhibit No. 1 shows the location of our State EDA No. 2, which is the well we propose to inject salt water, which is being produced from Wells No. 1 and 3 on the Shell Lease.

Q The Shell Lease, in this instance the Half Section that's hatched on the exhibit?

A That is correct.

Q What is the exact location of the Well No. 2, the proposed injection well here?

A State EDA No. 2 is located 330 feet from the South line and 947 feet from the West line of Section 7, Township 16 South, Range 35 East.

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



Q Have you, in this instance, contacted all the offset operators?

A Yes.

Q Advised them of your proposals and intentions and desires in this case?

A Yes, sir, we have contacted Skelly, Humble and Sinclair and we have received waivers from those three companies which you have in your exhibits.

Q Are those Exhibits Nos. 3, 4 and 5?

A Yes, sir.

Q What is the quantity of salt water produced at the present time in your Wells No. 1 and 3 beneath Lease?

A We are producing approximately 140 barrels a day at the present time.

Q Where is your tank battery located in this instance?

A It's located slightly North and West of Well No. 3 towards the center of the Half Section.

Q When was the Well No. 2, the injection well in this case, temporarily abandoned?

A That was abandoned in August, 1956. It was a well which went to water production, hundred percent water.

Q Do you propose, in the same manner, to use the former carry line to reverse the flow and carry your salt water to this well?

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



A In this case we, since we have removed the flow line we have proposed to install a steel line from the tank battery to the well and, as stated in our previous case, we propose to inject salt water down the casing on gravity flow. As you will note, we have a similar well casing program in this well with surface pipe set at 332 feet.

Q You are referring to your Exhibit No. 2 in this application?

A That is correct. We have 332 feet of 13-3/8 casing, 4674 feet of 8-5/8 casing. Both strings have cement circulated to the surface and we have 10,759 feet of 5-1/2 inch casing set and cemented with 700 sacks of cement.

The lower perforations, as you note on the exhibit, are shut off now with the cement retainer and, therefore, we propose to inject the water only in the upper set of perforations.

Q That is as indicated on the Exhibit No. 2?

A That is correct. We propose to handle this well in the same manner, that is in respect to treating the water with inhibitor, to minimize the possibility of any corrosion.

Q Will periodic tests be made to determine whether or not excessive corrosion is setting in?

A Yes. We will be checking this system also to detect any corrosion effects.

Q You aren't familiar, you aren't qualified to testify



concerning the fresh water in the upper horizons?

A No, sir, I'm not.

Q The next witness will testify as to that?

A Yes.

Q What is the estimated life of these wells Nos. 1 and 3, if you know?

A We estimate the remaining producing life of this lease to be approximately three years.

Q What is the weight of the casing installed in that well to the bottom hole?

A Well, that is a combination, the 5-1/2 inch casing is a combination of 15-1/2 pounds and 17 pounds J-55 and N-80 casing.

Q When was that discovery made?

A That well was completed in January, 1954.

Q Do you have any information as to the newness or otherwise of the casing as originally installed in the well, was it new casing?

A Yes, sir, it was new casing.

MR. MONTGOMERY: I have nothing further of this witness, if the Examiner please.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. UTZ:

Q Mr. Olson, referring to your ETA No. 1, did I understand you to say that the top of the 600 sacks of cement was about

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

8,000 feet?

A Yes, sir.

Q You had at least partially of the Abo section protected?

A Yes, sir, it's very close to the Abo section.

Q How about the Glorieta and Drinkard?

A Well, there would not be cement sheath opposite those zones.

Q Are there any Drinkard or Glorieta producing wells in this area? I mean by this area within three or four miles.

A I don't believe so, but our next witness can give you a more definite answer on that.

Q When did you say this well was completed?

A ETA 1 you mean?

Q Yes.

A ETA 1 was completed July, 1954.

Q This 5-1/2 inch string was J-55 and what weight?

A It's combination of 15-1/2 pound and, no, that's just all 15-1/2 pound in this well. It's a combination of J-55 and N-80.

Q That casing has been in there close to six years, hasn't it?

A That's correct.

Q Do you know of any corrosive problems in this area?

A Our experience with our surface equipment indicates that we have negligible corrosion without treatment. We have had, we



don't consider it a corrosive problem at all in that field.

Q You would have room enough to put a three inch string inside of this 5-1/2, wouldn't you, tubing string?

A I don't have the dimensions with me right now but I'm, to be sure we could put as large as three inch, two, possibly 2-1/2.

Q Do you think three inch tubing would handle 330 barrels a day?

A Yes.

Q Are you familiar with the salt water completions of Rice Engineering Company?

A In a general way.

Q In which they inject through tubing and use, as an extra precaution, sweet oil between the tubing and casing?

A Yes. We have not proposed to install the tubing in either case because of the limited life of the leases and the economics involved, the amount of water and the remaining life of the leases. We don't feel that we're justified in spending that much money.

Q This equipment would be retrievable?

A That's true.

MR. MONTGOMERY: What would you estimate the cost of installing a three inch tubing in each of these wells?

A That would be, I would estimate in the order of fifteen to twenty thousand dollars per well.

Q In regard to your EDA No. 2, I don't believe you gave the



top of the cement on that one.

A We have, you mean in the 5-1/2?

Q Yes, sir.

A The top of the cement is estimated there at 7400 feet.

Q So, again, you have the Drinkard and Glorieta open?

A Yes, sir.

Q And what was the weight of this casing again?

A This is combination 15-1/2 pound and 17 pound 5-1/2.

Q This well was completed in 1954 also?

A That's correct.

Q The casing is about the same age?

A That's correct.

Q You intend to inject into what formation, the Devonian?

A No, the Wolfcamp.

Q Is there any producing Wolfcamp wells within three or four miles of here?

A Yes, sir, there are.

Q What is the nearest well?

A The nearest well to the State ETA No. 1 well, there are offsets to the Northwest, to the North, to the Northeast and to the East. Utex Exploration has the Well No. 1 to the Northwest, Wilshire Oil has Well No. 46, I believe it is, to the North, and they also have a Well No. 4 to the Northeast, and Humble has a Well No. 5 to the East of this injection well.



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

Q What is the water-oil contact in the Wolfcamp Pool?

A I'm not in a position to answer that. The next witness can answer that.

MR. MONTGOMERY: What was that question?

Q The water-oil contact, if it has one. The next witness can answer whether you will be checking water below the water-oil contact if there is any?

A Yes, sir.

MR. UTZ: Any other questions of the witness?

BY MR. PAYNE:

Q How much would it cost, Mr. Olson, to take the cement up to 6,000 feet in both of these wells? That would be considerably cheaper than tubing, would it not?

A Yes, sir, it would be cheaper, but it certainly wouldn't be as effective. I don't off-hand know. It would be something in the order of two or three thousand dollars possibly, depending on what our conditions are.

MR. UTZ: It would be more effective than the way it is, wouldn't it?

A Well, that's true.

MR. UTZ: Any other questions? Mr. Irby.

BY MR. IRBY:

Q Mr. Olson, you stated that there is 140 barrels per day being produced that would go into the EDA No. 2, is that correct?



A That's correct.

Q That would go in by gravity injection?

A Yes.

Q What is the maximum anticipated amount that will be injected or disposed into this well?

A Possibly somewhere between two and three hundred barrels a day. We only have two wells and the 140 barrels a day at the present time comes from just one of the wells, so it remains to be seen how much water the second one will produce and that probably will be another 140 to 150 barrels a day.

MR. IRBY: That's all.

MR. UTZ: Any other questions?

MR. MONTGOMERY: Nothing further.

MR. UTZ: If not, the witness may be excused.

(Witness excused.)

W. M. ASHLEY

called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MONTGOMERY:

Q Will you state your name, please?

A W. M. Ashley.

Q Where do you live, Mr. Ashley?

A I live in Roswell, New Mexico.

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



Q What is your official position or connection with the Shell Oil Company, applicant in this case?

A My present position, I am a reservoir engineer in the division of Shell Company in Roswell.

Q Have you previously testified before the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission or the Examiner?

A No, I have not.

Q Will you briefly state your educational background and your experience in this field?

A I graduated from Missouri School of Mines in 1954 with a Bachelor of Science Degree in petroleum engineering. I went to work for Shell immediately after graduation. One year I was on their extension training program and two years I was a field engineer and the past year I have been a reservoir engineer, the present position I have now.

Q Just what are your duties as a reservoir engineer?

A As a reservoir engineer we deal primarily with the prediction of reservoir performance and, carrying it a little bit further, we work with the economic evaluation of most of our projects.

MR. MONTGOMERY: Are the qualifications of the witness acceptable?

MR. UTZ: Yes, sir.

Q Have you made a study of the reservoir in the Shell ETA



State No. 1, the Townsend Field?

A Yes, sir, we have, a very extensive study.

Q Will you just explain that to the Examiner, please?

A We have studied this field just recently as a project for an engineering committee of all the operators at Townsend, but dealing primarily with the salt water disposal. We might say that structurally at Townsend there is not much structural relief here. All the surrounding wells are on about the same plane as this well is.

A moment ago you spoke of where the original oil-water contact is. There has been no oil-water contact established in the Townsend Field on to the Eidson Field, which some consider is more or less a connecting portion to the Townsend Field. The discovery well found this original oil and water contact at approximately 6700 feet subsea. Now, in this case we will be injecting the water at about 6300 feet subsea, so we're not injecting this water below an oil-water contact, but into the main oil column in the reservoir.

I think perhaps you may be wondering if we'll hurt this reservoir by putting water into it. All of the offset operators have waived this, well, they've given us permission to inject water in the wells. They don't think it will hurt their wells. If you are familiar with water drive recoveries in this type of reservoir, which incidently has been operated by a solution gas drive mechanism, if anything is to be gained the water drive is

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



a more efficient system than the solution gas drive. If anything is to be gained they will probably get a lot more oil rather than losing any of the oil.

Q How do you anticipate that this salt water will be dispelled over the area? How deep will it stand in the 5-1/2 inch casing?

A Well, as we have previously stated, this water will be gravity fed into this well. We have made calculations using some of the ~~empirical~~ equations by Darcy and some other people, which tell us that we can inject under gravity approximately 1,000 barrels a day in either of these wells, either the EDA 2 or ETA 1. Estimation of how high the fluid level will stand in the casing, I haven't calculated that exactly, but I would suspect we would have somewhere around 3,000 foot of fluid in the bottom of the hole, a working fluid level as we inject the water. In other words, the water will more or less cascade down the casing and work at a fluid level of perhaps 7,000 feet maybe. That was just an estimate.

Q There is already salt water in the bottom of the hole in this particular well?

A Well, in ETA 1 there is not, this well has been depleted as far as we are concerned about a year ago in August or September we abandoned the well primarily because we had a gas lift equipment on it and we needed the equipment elsewhere, so as far as we are concerned the well reached its economic limit.

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



These wells now produced a considerable quantity of gas with very little oil throughout the whole reservoir. As a matter of fact, none of the wells on the ETA have top allowable oil production. I think there are only one or two throughout the whole field that have top allowable production.

Q The question was asked, I believe, a moment ago of Mr. Olson where the nearest production to this ETA No. 1 is in any of the other zones, the San Andres, Glorieta, Drinkard. Do you know?

A The nearest production, as I recall, is in the Lovington Field which is approximately, I would say, about ten miles to the South and East of the Townsend Field. They produce there out of the Paddock, I believe Pennsylvanian, the Abo and I think that's about all and the San Andres they produce. That is considerable distance away.

Most of the early wells in this field, the initial discovery well, the Wilshire, Townsend II, I believe they drill stem tested all the prospect horizon. As I recall, from this, they got salt water out of the San Andres formation; and the other producing horizons down to top of the Wolfcamp were so tight or the reservoir development was so poor that they didn't yield anything but a little bit of mud, so I would suspect that they are so tight there isn't any fluid in them at all now.

Q In your opinion, is there any possibility of commingling of this produced salt water which you propose to dispose of

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

with any fresh water in the area?

A Not with the fresh water. There are two basic fresh water -- you can call them such -- horizons in this area. There's one in about the 100 to 200 foot interval which is fresh, I'm sure. That is the Ogalla formation, and then the Santa Rosa, approximately 1100 feet. I am not sure how fresh that water is, but we have two strings of casing cemented to surface covering these up and then we have the long production string all the way to the DW casing up to 11,000 feet.

In my mind, there is no danger of contaminating the fresh water with the salt water. As far as the oil horizons are concerned, charging them with water, I think we can dispel that thought because, see, we are injecting this water under gravity. In other words, the pressure outside the casing is greater than the pressure inside the casing. If there were a hole in the casing, the fluids outside would have a tendency to go into the casing and on down to the disposal zone rather than from the casing out into the horizon, so I think we have no problem there whatsoever.

MR. UTZ: Is there pressure in the Glorieta and Drinkard?

A If it is as tight as indicated by drill stem test, the pressures that were measured there were very low. There will be more pressure than in the well bore, but if there is any movement of fluid it should be into the casing from those formations.

Q Do you anticipate that the casing, the water standing



in the casing will reach those horizons?

A Well, we have no way of knowing exactly until we inject the water. It is probable that it will, but I can't say with any degree of accuracy whether it will or not. Once you start injecting water in this thing, you can't tell how it will go. We can only estimate how much water we can put in under gravity, and sometimes our calculations aren't always what we predict, but in this case I am quite sure that we can handle the 300, 320 barrels a day under gravity.

Q The testimony you have given here is based on your experience and other people in the company and their experience and training and knowledge of reservoirs of this sort?

A Yes, sir.

Q Turning to your EDA State No. 2 for a moment, will you explain the Eidson Field there similar to your explanation in the ETA No. 1?

A This is slightly different than the Townsend Field. The Eidson Field is a small domal closure off to the West of the Townsend Field. This accumulation is located structurally quite lower than the Townsend Field itself is and the oil-water contact is in close conjunction, sort of surrounds the structure. Our well, as Mr. Olson stated, it did go to 100 percent water and now we propose to inject water back into the well. We will be putting the water in this well below the original oil-water contact. I doubt



if in this well it will have any effect on any of them. It is sort of like putting a drop in the ocean in this case. It is similar except we are putting the water below the oil-water contact in this case.

Q With respect to that well, do you know where the closest or nearest production from the Drinkard, Abo or Glorieta sand is?

A It will still be in the Lovington Field, approximately ten, twelve miles to the East.

Q You feel, with respect to this well, the same as you expressed a moment ago, that there would be no likelihood or little likelihood of any contamination or commingling of this produced salt water with the fresh water in the area?

A I think the chances are very small, if any, that we would ever contaminate the fresh water in this area.

MR. MONTGOMERY: I believe that's all.

A I have one thing else I would like to say here, if I may.

Q Go ahead.

A You mentioned to Mr. Olson, you mentioned the possibility of running three inch tubing and how much it would cost. I deal primarily with the evaluation of our projects and, as you know, money is quite tight in the oil industry these days. Most people in their evaluation work determine the present value of the money. We look into the future some five or six or twenty years and determine what that income then will be worth to us then.



We do the same with expenditures. In this case, if we had to spend \$20,000 immediately, even though that this tubing would have some salvage value five years from now, we would consider that as lost income. The money we get after five years in this present value system is almost worthless. Anything in excess of five years that you get income from is not worth much to you now. It would be the same way with the expenditure. If we had to spend \$20,000 in five years, even if we did get the salvage value, it would be quite worthless to us on the present basis.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. UTZ:

Q We understand that, Mr. Ashley, but on the other hand, if there's a possibility of your ruining fifteen or twenty thousand dollars worth of reservoir here, then it's money poorly spent.

A It surely is and we don't want to ruin the reservoir, I'm sure of that.

Q There are no shows or any wells closer than Lovington in Glorieta or Drinkard?

A I would say there are no significant shows and there is no production that I have knowledge of except over in the Lovington area.

Q Have you had considerable experience with this salt water injection and salt water treating?

A I have done quite a bit of calculations with salt water



injection. I haven't had any with the treating of these facilities. We work quite a bit with this water and calculating how much it will take and what rates we will inject in our water flood, but I haven't done much with the treating facility.

Q In your experience, do you know that treating of salt water prior to injection has been completely successful so far as Shell is concerned?

A I cannot say. Perhaps Mr. Olson could shed some light on that.

MR. UTZ: Do you have that information regarding that, Mr. Olson?

MR. OLSON: Well, I haven't had any experience with where we have actually treated a salt water well in this particular manner. We have treated water and found that our surface equipment has held up all right under those conditions, and we've kept our treatment up to the proper level.

MR. UTZ: Do you feel with the use of coupons you can definitely determine that the casing can be protected, Mr. Olson?

MR. OLSON: Yes, sir. And further, if we find that our coupons do not indicate that we're getting satisfactory treatment or satisfactory protection, we would propose to caliper our casing periodically and check the condition of the casing to be sure that we are not corroding the casing when our coupon checked to show whether or not it agrees with our coupon checks.



MR. MONTGOMERY: Describe what you mean by "checking the casing."

MR. OLSON: We will run a regular caliper survey, which is an instrument to detect pits or holes in the casing or anything affecting the casing due to internal corrosion. This is a standard tool being used in the oil fields right now.

MR. MONTGOMERY: Any pit or hole in the casing above the standing water level would not let water escape from the casing, would it?

MR. OLSON: Well, as long as there's no pressure on it, there's no real chance; but we would, if we detected a hole in the casing, we would certainly not continue to inject without taking remedial measures to correct it. Our aim is to inhibit the water to prevent the occurrence of such things.

MR. UTZ: Other than your caliper surveys on these wells you have no way to check whether or not you are losing salt water through the casing, Mr. Olson?

MR. OLSON: Well, the caliper surveys would only fail in that respect if it did not pick up the hole where you would be losing the salt water through the casing.

Q (By Mr. Utz) Then you actually have no check to determine whether or not you are losing salt water through the casing?

A Well, there is a check that could be made. We use it in the water floods quite consistently. That is to use the radioactive



tracers and then run a gamma ray log to locate where the water is going. If you suspect you have a leak you can trace it in that manner.

MR. UTZ: I think we will have to admit that the principle of using tubing with sweet oil annulus has that very definite advantage, in that you know when you are losing water.

MR. OLSON: That's correct.

MR. UTZ: Are there other questions?

BY MR. PAYNE:

Q Are any of the Townsend-Wolfcamp wells, Mr. Ashley, near to the proposed injection wells, producing top unit allowable?

A No, they aren't.

Q So that if, as you suggest, the water injection would actually benefit the wells, there would be slight chance of any bypassing, in other words, the producing well has some tolerance insofar as allowable is concerned, it could go ahead and produce the oil?

A Oh, yes, that's quite right. As a matter of fact, I have looked at them and all the offset wells, I think that they are all down to about 200 barrels, between 200 and 300 barrels a month. The top allowable is something around 4,000, I suspect, out there now. I don't recall quite what it is, but they are almost at the point where they're going to have to be abandoned.



Q And in view of the fact that these two wells would only be used a maximum of three years, and the casing is only some six years old, you feel that the likelihood of any casing leak is relatively small?

A Well, with the experience I have had, of course I am not the expert George is, I would question that without any treatment you probably wouldn't have enough corrosion in this case to get a hole in your pipe.

MR. PAYNE: Thank you.

BY MR. UTZ:

Q How about the Wolfcamp oil, is it sweet or corrosive?

A As far as I know it's relatively sweet. I can't say if it's real corrosive or not. We haven't experienced much corrosiveness in our surface equipment.

MR. OLSON: We checked the hydrosulfide and the gas out in the field recently, and it's not even measurable, I don't believe. It's less than five parts, I believe.

MR. UTZ: So you feel that the casing is still in pretty good shape?

MR. OLSON: Yes, sir.

MR. UTZ: Any other questions? Mr. Irby.

BY MR. IRBY:

Q Mr. Ashley, you estimate the life of this production at approximately three years, and you referred to the three years



again in reply to questions by Mr. Payne. Is it the intent of Shell to abandon these wells as salt water disposal wells at the end of the life of this production?

A We have just completed, like I say, this extensive study of the Townsend Field. The report hasn't come out yet. We have investigated the field for secondary recovery prospects and now the field is almost 90 percent depleted by primary methods and the field has gone for so long without any pressure maintenance project being started that at the present time it looks like we can not economically start a secondary recovery project out there. So, in all events, or for all practical purposes, the field will probably be abandoned in another three to possibly five years.

Q Is there likelihood that these two injection wells might be used to dispose of salt water from other areas or horizons?

A There are no other producing horizons in this area except the Wolfcamp horizon. It's probably speculative that we might dispose of some water from the other operators' leases in these wells, it may be the case at Townsend; I doubt it very much because 80 to 90 percent of the water from the Townsend Field, some hundred wells, there, are produced from four wells on the flank of the field, so we have most of the water in the field there. Over in the Eidson Field there are two wells producing just water there. That's our well and then the Humble Townsend 4 immediately East of it.

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



Q Do you anticipate that there might be, at a later date, salt water to dispose in other areas nearby or at reasonable distances which might want to go through these injection wells?

A No, I think not. The nearest production from here is, as I believe, the Kenmitz Wolfcamp Field three miles to the West, which now we are currently working on a gas injection secondary recovery project for the Kenmitz Field and we have seen no water production in this field yet. It's more or less like the Townsend. First of all, we couldn't afford to run the lines probably from Kenmitz to the Townsend Field to inject the water. If we are going to put away salt water we probably would do it in the Kenmitz Field, it is quite expensive to run a large line for several miles.

MR. IRBY: Thank you.

MR. UTZ: Any other questions?

MR. MONTGOMERY: We offer in evidence the Exhibits 1 to 5 inclusive in connection with each of these wells and also the respective radioactivity log and the Schlumberger electric logs which were filed and made a part of our application here.

MR. UTZ: The exhibits, as stated, will be made a part of the record. The witness may be excused.

(Witness excused.)

MR. UTZ: Any other statements to be made in this case? The case will be taken under advisement and we will recess until one-fifteen.

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO



STATE OF NEW MEXICO)
 : SS
 COUNTY OF BERNALILLO)

I, ADA DEARNLEY, Court Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing and attached transcript of proceedings before the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico, is a true and correct record to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have affixed my hand and notarial seal this 8th day of June, 1960.

Ada Dearnley
 Notary Public-Court Reporter

My commission expires:

June 19, 1963.

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is
 a complete record of the proceedings in
 the Examiner hearing of Case No. 1978.
 heard by me on June 1, 1960.
Elmer R. [Signature] Examiner
 New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

